
 

 

 
Regulatory Committee 

 
Date:  Tuesday 2 April 2024 
Time:  10.30 am 
Venue:  Committee Room 2, Shire Hall 
 
Membership 
Councillor Jill Simpson-Vince (Chair) 
Councillor John Cooke (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Jeff Clarke 
Councillor Judy Falp 
Councillor Dave Humphreys 
Councillor Andy Jenns 
Councillor Dale Keeling 
Councillor Justin Kerridge 
Councillor Chris Mills 
Councillor Caroline Phillips 
Councillor Tim Sinclair 
Councillor Adrian Warwick 
 
Items on the agenda:   
  
1.   General 

 
 

 
(1) Apologies  
To receive any apologies from members of the Committee. 
 

 
 

(2) Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
 

 
 

(3) Minutes of the Previous Meeting 5 - 6 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2024. 
 

 
 
2.   Delegated Decisions 7 - 8 
 Members are asked to note the applications dealt with under 

delegated powers since the last meeting. 
 

 

 
3.   Application under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act (as amended) seeking permission for the variation of 
condition 2 of planning permission RBC/22CC007 for a new fire 
rescue training centre including a 'hot smoke house' Minerva fire 
simulation training facility, a welfare building, on-site parking, 
road way, fencing and planting, Warwickshire County Council 
owned land, former Land & Chippings site, Paynes Lane, Rugby, 
CV21 2UH 

9 - 40 



 

Regulatory Committee 
Tuesday 2 April 2024 

Page 2 
  

 

 
 
  

4.   Reports Containing Confidential or Exempt Information  
 To consider passing the following resolution:  

 
‘That members of the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
items mentioned below on the grounds that their presence would 
involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 
1 and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972.’ 
 

 

 
5.   Proposed Settlement Following the Decision of the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
 

41 - 44 

 
 

Monica Fogarty 
Chief Executive 

Warwickshire County Council 
Shire Hall, Warwick 

 
 



 

Regulatory Committee 
Tuesday 2 April 2024 

Page 3 
  

 

 
Disclaimers 
 
Webcasting and permission to be Filmed 
 
Please note that this meeting will be filmed for live broadcast on the internet and can be viewed 
online at warwickshire.public-i.tv. Generally, the public gallery is not filmed, but by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area you are consenting to being filmed. All recording 
will be undertaken in accordance with the Council's Standing Orders. 
 
Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
 
Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of their 
election of appointment to the Council.  Any changes to matters registered or new matters that 
require to be registered must be notified to the Monitoring Officer as soon as practicable after they 
arise. 
 
A member attending a meeting where a matter arises in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest must (unless they have a dispensation):  
 

• Declare the interest if they have not already registered it  
• Not participate in any discussion or vote  
• Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with  
• Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 

the meeting.  
 
Non-pecuniary interests relevant to the agenda should be declared at the commencement of the 
meeting. 
 
The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web 
https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1  
 
Public Speaking 
 
Any member of the public who is resident or working in Warwickshire, or who is in receipt of 
services from the Council, may speak at the meeting for up to three minutes on any matter within 
the remit of the Committee. This can be in the form of a statement or a question. If you wish to 
speak, please notify Democratic Services in writing at least three working days before the meeting. 
You should give your name and address and the subject upon which you wish to speak. Full details 
of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s Standing Orders.  
 
 
 

https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Regulatory Committee 
 
Tuesday 12 March 2024  
 

Minutes 
 
Attendance 
 
Committee Members 
 
Councillor Jill Simpson-Vince (Chair) 
Councillor John Cooke (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Justin Kerridge 
Councillor Tim Sinclair 
Councillor Judy Falp 
 
Officers 
 
Helen Barnsley, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Caroline Gutteridge, Delivery Lead Commercial & Regulatory 
Deb Moseley, Democratic Services Manager 
 
 
 
1. General 
 

(1) Apologies 
 
 Apologies were received from Councillors Jeff Clarke, David Humphreys, Andy Jenns, Dale 

Keeling, Chris Mills, Caroline Phillips and Adrian Warwick. 
 
(2) Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

 
 None. 

 
(3) Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

 
 The minutes of the meeting held on the 9th January 2024 were agreed as a true and accurate 

record. 
  
There were no matters arising. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Page 1 of 2 Agenda Item 1(3)



 

Page 2 
Regulatory Committee 
 
12.03.24 

2. Delegated Decisions 
 
Members of the committee asked for confirmation regarding application SDC/23CM012; the 
Installation of an MCC Kiosk at Bidford-on-Avon STW, Salford Road, Stratford-on-Avon, 
Warwickshire. B50 4EU and what an MCC kiosk is.  It was confirmed that an MCC Kiosk is a 
building that houses the Motor Control Centre (MCC) that controls the pumping equipment within 
the site. 
  
Members noted the delegated decision made by officers since the last meeting, as set out in the 
report. 
 
3. Appointments to External Organisations 
 
It was confirmed that on 5 March 2024, Cabinet received a report seeking approval of 
arrangements for the Council to participate in the West Midlands Investment Zone (WMIZ) and that 
approval was given. 
  
As a result, Committee members are asked to approve the nomination of Councillor Martin 
Watson, the Portfolio Holder for Economy, to the West Midlands Investment Zone Joint 
Committee. 
  
The recommendation was proposed by Councillor John Cooke and seconded by Councillor Jill 
Simpson-Vince. A vote was held; and the Committee voted unanimously in favour of the 
recommendation. 
  
Resolved 
  
That Regulatory Committee approves the nomination of Councillor Martin Watson, the Portfolio 
Holder for Economy, to the West Midlands Investment Zone Joint Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 10:32am 
  

Page 6

Page 2 of 2



 

 
 

Regulatory Committee – 2 April 2024 
 

Applications Dealt with Under Delegated Powers  
 

Recommendation 
 
That the Regulatory Committee notes the content of the report 
 
Delegated Powers 
 
C. APPLICATIONS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 
Application reference 
& valid date  
electoral division 
case officer 

Site location & proposal Decision date 

 
SDC/23CC008 
 
Case Officer  
Georg Urban  
 

 
Use of existing top section of playing field adjacent 
Jubilee Athletics Track Stratford-upon-Avon High School 
as a temporary car park with associated fencing whilst 
construction works occur on the main school building 
with a completion date of late 2024, at  Stratford upon 
Avon High School, Stratford Community Sports Centre, 
Alcester Road, Stratford-upon-Avon, Warwickshire, 
CV31 2JF 
 

 
Approved 

 
8 March 2024 

 

Page 7

Page 1 of 1 Agenda Item 2

https://planning.warwickshire.gov.uk/swiftlg/apas/run/WPHAPPDETAIL.DisplayUrl?theApnID=SDC/23CC008&backURL=%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D384993%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%20%3E%20%3Ca%20href%3D%27wphappsearchres.displayResultsURL%3FResultID%3D571536%2526StartIndex%3D1%2526SortOrder%3DRGNDAT%3AD%2526DispResultsAs%3DWPHAPPSEARCHRES%2526BackURL%3D%253Ca%2520href%253Dwphappcriteria.display%253FpaSearchKey%253D384993%253ESearch%2520Criteria%253C%252Fa%253E%27%3ESearch%20Results%3C%2Fa%3E


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Regulatory Committee 

 
2 April 2024 

 
Application under Section 73 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act (as amended) seeking permission for the 

variation of condition 2 of planning permission 
RBC/22CC007 for a new fire rescue training centre 

including a 'hot smoke house' Minerva fire simulation 
training facility, a welfare building, on-site parking, 

road way, fencing and planting,  
Warwickshire County Council owned land, former 
Land & Chippings site, Paynes Lane, Rugby, CV21 

2UH. 
 

RBC/23CC007 
 

 
Application No.: RBC/23CC007 
  
Advertised date: 16/11/2023 
  
Applicant: Mr Lee Jones 

Warwickshire County Council 
Assistant Director for Enabling Services 
Warwickshire County Council 
Shire Hall Post Room 
Northgate Street 
Warwick 
CV34 4SP 

  
Agent: Charlie Drucquer 

Corporate Architecture Ltd 
Venari House 
1 Trimbush Way 
Rockingham Road 
Market Harborough 
LE16 7XY 

  
Registered by: The Strategic Director for Communities on 6 October 

2023 
  

Page 9

Page 1 of 18 Agenda Item 3



 

Proposal: S73 application seeking permission for the variation of 
condition 2 of planning permission RBC/22CC007 for a 
new fire rescue training centre including a 'hot smoke 
house' Minerva fire simulation training facility, a welfare 
building, on-site parking, road way, fencing and planting 
at Paynes Lane, Rugby. 

  
Site & location: Warwickshire County Council owned land, Paynes Lane 

former Land & Chippings site, Paynes Lane, Rugby, 
CV21 2UH. [Grid ref: 448793, 275464]. 
 
See plan in Appendix A 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Regulatory Committee authorises the grant of a planning permission 
for the construction of a new fire rescue training centre including a 'hot smoke 
house' Minerva fire simulation training facility, a welfare building, onsite 
parking, roadway, fencing, and planting, without complying with condition 2 of 
planning permission reference RBC/22CC007 (development to be carried out 
in accordance with the approved plans and details), subject to the conditions 
and for the reasons contained within Appendix B of the report of the Executive 
Director for Communities. 
 
1. Application Details 
 
1.1 In June 2023, the Regulatory Committee resolved to grant permission 

for the use of land at Paynes Lane, Rugby as a fire training centre 
under application reference RBC/22CC007. The application proposed 
the construction of a “hot smoke unit” located in the centre of the site, a 
filtration section adjacent to it, and a two storey welfare building in the 
north eastern corner of the site. An internal road would loop around the 
fire house and filtration building.  
 

1.2 Condition 2 of planning permission reference RBC/22CC007 requires 
that the development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans and details. Since the granting of the planning 
permission, the detailed design of the facility has undergone some 
minor changes. For this reason, the applicant now requests permission 
under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) to carry out the previously approved development, but 
without complying with the condition that requires compliance with the 
previously approved details.  
 

1.3 Under the proposed amended scheme, the general layout of the site 
would remain unchanged. The fire house in the centre of the site would 
still be constructed from adapted shipping containers which would be 
combined to form a building with a footprint of approximately 12 m by 
21 m, the central part of which would consist of containers stacked 

Page 10

Page 2 of 18



 

three to four levels high, giving a maximum height of approximately 12 
metres. 
 

1.4 Attached to the south side of the fire house would be a filtration unit 
comprising a rectangular container at its base and a cylindrical tank 
above it. The filtration unit would measure approximately 5 m x 12 m 
with a height of approximately 12 metres and be connected to the main 
fire house structure by a horizontal duct approximately 10 metres 
above ground.  
 

1.5 The proposed training welfare building would be located in the north-
eastern part of the site, in the same location as previously approved, 
but with slightly different design and dimensions. It would measure 
9.6 m x 19.8 m (compared with 9.0 x 22 m for the previously permitted 
building) and have a 1.5 degree mono-pitch roof with a maximum 
height of 6.5 m at the rear (eastern) elevation, rising to 6.85 m at the 
front (western) elevation. The previously permitted building had a 
maximum height of 6.2 m. A drawing showing the previously approved 
elevations of the welfare building is attached in Appendix C to this 
report. A drawing showing the proposed amended elevations is in 
Appendix D.  
 

1.6 The external appearance would be similar to that of the previously 
permitted building: The external walls would consist of coated steel 
sheets, the ground floor units would have light grey cladding boards 
fitted, whereas the first floor units would be finished in white. The roof 
would be finished in grey coloured profile steel roof sheeting. Windows 
and doors would consist of anthracite grey powder coated aluminium. 
Skirts and gutters/downpipes would be coloured black. The building 
would be of modular construction, consisting of 14 modules (7 on the 
ground floor and 7 on the first floor) which would be transported to the 
site individually and assembled on site.  
 

1.7 The ground floor of the training welfare building would contain 
changing rooms, showers, toilets and storage and drying rooms for 
equipment. On the first floor there would be an office/meeting room, a 
training room, and a kitchenette.  
 

1.8 The amended proposal includes the construction of a single storey 
equipment store along the northern site boundary, adjacent to the 
welfare training building. The equipment store would be 10.3 m long x 
2.9 m deep and 2.6 m high, with a flat roof. The equipment store would 
be finished in GTEC Weather Defence cladding, coloured mid grey. 
This is a new element which was not part of the previously approved 
scheme.   
 

1.9 The site would be accessed via the existing access point on Paynes 
Lane in the south west corner of the site. The perimeter road around 
the hot smoke house would have a concrete surface. The area in front 
of the welfare building and the equipment store would be finished in a 

Page 11

Page 3 of 18



 

permeable block paved surface. A row of 14 car parking spaces 
(including 1 disabled bay and 2 bays with electric vehicle chargers) 
would be constructed along the south-eastern site boundary. A covered 
bicycle shelter would be provided adjacent to the car parking spaces. 
 

1.10 The perimeter of the site is currently enclosed by a 2.5 metre high 
galvanised steel palisade security fence, which would be retained.  
 

1.11 The preparation of the site would require the existing concrete 
hardstanding to be broken up and removed from site. The underlying 
material would be excavated and used in the landscaping of the site by 
creating an elongated mound up to 1.5 metres in height along the 
western site boundary, and smaller mounds of similar height in the 
north eastern corner between the proposed welfare building and the 
Lawford Road/A4071 crossing and in the southern part of the site 
adjacent to the site entrance. Additional boundary planting consisting of 
a hedgerow and trees would be established along the western site 
boundary. A drawing showing the previously approved site layout is 
attached in Appendix C to this report. A drawing showing the proposed 
amended site layout is in Appendix D. 
 

1.12 The proposed facility would be used in a number of ways. The fire 
house would be used for training involving “hot fire” scenarios, such as 
entering a building on fire or filled with smoke, breathing apparatus 
training, multi-pump exercises, collaboration between Police and fire 
services or partnership working with other fire services, and training for 
retained firefighters. Some elements of the training would be 
undertaken in the training and meeting room located in the welfare 
building.  
 

1.13 The current application does not seek to vary the consented operating 
times. To recap, given the number of different courses that need to be 
run in order to satisfy the statutory training requirements for the fire 
service, the facility would be used on approximately 194 days per 
annum. Daytime training sessions would take place between 0800 and 
1800 hours, evening sessions would last from 1800 to 2200 hours. 
Daytime and evening sessions may take place on the same day or on 
separate days. The previous permission is subject to a condition 
limiting the hours of operation of the facility to 0800 to 2200 Monday to 
Friday inclusive and 0800 to 1400 hours on Saturdays, with no 
operations taking part at any time on Sundays or Public or Bank 
Holidays. It is not proposed to amend these permitted hours of 
operation.  
 

1.14 During training exercises, the facility would be used by a maximum of 6 
instructors plus 12 trainees and 2 officers for each training session.  
 

1.15 No changes are proposed to the operation of the site. The training 
sessions would involve fires being lit inside the fire house in order to 
simulate realistic scenarios. The emissions and smoke produced by 

Page 12

Page 4 of 18



 

such fires would be captured by means of collection hoods above all 
exit points, i.e., doors and windows. The emissions are then drawn 
upwards through the hoods and via interconnecting ductwork to the 
filtration plant on the south side of the building, where particles and 
gases are scrubbed before the clean air is released from the fan outlet 
stack.  

 
 
2. Consultation 
 
2.1 Rugby Borough Council – Planning: Has no comments in relation to 

this application, subject to no objection from relevant technical 
consultees, residents and businesses in the Rugby Borough Council 
area.  

 
2.2 Rugby Borough Council – Environmental Health Officer: No 

objection, subject to the following observation: As the development is 
within the Rugby Smoke Control area it should be ensured that if 
installed, any chimney-based exhaust ventilators from the hot smoke 
rooms are adequately controlled to prevent smoke emissions. The 
emission of dark smoke would be an offence under the Clean Air Act 
1993 part 1.  

 
2.3 WCC Highways: No objection.  
 
2.4 County Archaeologist: No response received.  
 
2.5 County Ecologist: No response received.  
 
2.6 County Landscape Architect: No response received.  
 
2.7 Warwickshire Fire & Rescue Service – Fire Protection: Had no 

objection to the original application in February 2023, subject to the 
standard criteria for access to the site as set out in standard response 
letter FPP2 being met, and have no further comment to make to the 
current application.  

 
2.8 Warwickshire Fire & Rescue Service – Water Department: No 

comment, as the site has been assessed as satisfactory with existing 
water supply.  

 
2.9 Environment Agency: No response received.  
 
2.10 Severn Trent Water: No response received. 
 
2.11 Cadent Gas – Plant Protection: No response received.  
 
2.12 Planning Policy Team: No response received.  
 
2.13 Coventry Airport: No response received.  

Page 13

Page 5 of 18



 

 
2.14 Cllr Peter Butlin: No response received.  
 
2.15 Cllr Sarah Feeney: No response received.  
 
2.16 Cllr Barbara Brown: No response received.  
 
 
3. Publicity  
 
3.1 Four site notices were displayed on 26 October 2023, at the entrance 

to the site on Paynes Lane, at the junction of Lawford Road and 
Paynes Lane, on a lamppost at the junction of Lawford Road and the 
A4071 Rugby Western Relief Road, and one to the south of the site on 
the A4071, at the public footpath leading to Paynes Lane.  

 
3.2 12 residential properties and 8 businesses on roads surrounding the 

site (Paynes Lane, Lawford Road, Upton Road and Lawford Bridge 
Close) were individually notified on 26 October 2023. 

 
3.3 No representations were received.  
 
 
4. Previous Planning History 
 
4.1 In the 1950s, part of the site was occupied by a grain silo building. 

Aerial photographs taken in 1999 show the site to be vacant and 
disused. During the construction of the Rugby Western Relief Road in 
2009, the site contained the contractor’s welfare and site office 
accommodation.  

 
4.2 Aerial photographs since 2010 show the temporary buildings 

associated with the Relief Road construction removed; the 
hardstanding areas retained on the site and the whole application area 
used for the storage of road chippings. While there was no approved 
use for the land in the planning record, the use of the site for the 
storage of road chippings, which would fall within a B8 storage use, 
appears to have been an established use for over 10 years.  

 
4.3 In June 2020, planning permission for the use of the site as a 

Highways depot was granted under reference RBC/19CC009. 
However, this use ceased in 2021 and the site is currently vacant.   

 
4.4 In June 2023, planning permission was granted under reference 

RBC/22CC007 for the use of the site as a fire rescue training centre 
including a 'hot smoke house' Minerva fire simulation training facility 
and welfare building, on site parking, road way, fencing and planting. 
This permission has not yet been implemented and the current 
application seeks to vary some details of the proposed development.  

 

Page 14

Page 6 of 18



 

 
5. Assessment and Observations 
 
 Site and Surroundings 
 
5.1 The application site is approximately 0.4 hectares in area, located 

some 1.5 km to the west of Rugby town centre. The northern boundary 
of the site is marked by the A428 Lawford Road with the Rugby 
Cement Works to the north. The signalised junction of the A4071 
Rugby Western Relief Road / A428 Lawford Road is to the northeast of 
the application site. Residential properties are within 170 metres of the 
application site, the closest being the four storey flats northeast of the 
junction of Lawford Road and A4071 and the two storey terrace houses 
further east along Lawford Road.  

 
5.2 Land to the east and south of the application site and south of the 

A428/A4071 junction is occupied by commercial units, while the area to 
the west of the site is predominantly occupied by light industrial and 
commercial buildings and a sewage pumping station operated by 
Severn Trent Water Ltd. Public Right of Way 333/RB15/2 runs to the 
west of the pumping station and connects Paynes Lane with the A4071 
Rugby Western Relief Road.  

 
5.3 The application site is enclosed by a steel palisade fence 

approximately 2 metres in height, with access gates on the southern 
boundary adjacent to the Severn Trent pumping station. The access 
drive rises steeply from Paynes Lane into the site. The ground within 
the application site is predominantly level, rising only slightly from the 
southern entrance towards the northern side of the site. The area is 
hard surfaced with large areas of tarmac and areas of loose stone 
chippings. Along the internal boundaries of the site are areas of scrub 
vegetation including buddleia and a willow tree close to the entrance to 
the site.  

 
5.4 To the north of the northern boundary fence and beyond the fence 

along the south-eastern boundary is an area of landscaping some 6 
metres in width. The strip of land is planted with young / semi-mature 
trees which provide a screen of views into the site from the surrounding 
area. This landscaped area is not within the application area.  

 
5.5 The application site is located in Flood Zone 1.  
 
 Planning Policy 
 
 National Planning Policy 
 
5.6 Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

(December 2023) explains that there is a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development and what that means. What the presumption 
means in relation to a planning application is that: 

Page 15

Page 7 of 18



 

 
(a) proposals which accord with an up-to-date development plan 

should be approved without delay; and 
 

(b) where there are no relevant development plan policies or the 
policies most important for determining the application are out-of-
date, then permission should be granted unless: 

 
● the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas 

or assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for 
refusing the development proposed or 

 
● any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 

demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against 
the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

 
Where the presumption in (b) applies, it is often referred to as the “tilted 
balance” in favour of the application. 

 
5.7  Paragraph 12 goes on to explain that the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the 
development plan as the starting point for decision making. Where a 
planning application conflicts with an up-to-date development plan 
(including any neighbourhood plans that form part of the development 
plan), permission should not usually be granted. Local planning 
authorities may take decisions that depart from an up-to-date 
development plan, but only if material considerations in a particular 
case indicate that the plan should not be followed.  

 
5.8 Paragraph 48 explains that authorities may give weight to relevant 

policies in emerging development plans according to: a) the stage of 
preparation of the emerging plan; b) the extent to which there are 
unresolved objections to relevant policies; and c) the degree of 
consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this 
Framework. 

 
5.9 In this case, there is a development plan in place which has relevant 

policies that are considered to be up-to-date so far as they relate to this 
proposal. Therefore, the application should be determined (as required 
by Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004) 
in accordance with those policies, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. The Development Plan relevant to the proposal 
consists of the Rugby Borough Council Local Plan 2011 - 2031 
(adopted June 2019).  

 
5.10 The courts have made it clear that for the purposes of Section 38(6) it 

is enough that the proposal accords with the development plan 
considered as a whole. It does not have to accord with each and every 
policy in the plan. It is a matter of judgement for the Committee whether 
the proposal accords with the plan, considered as a whole, bearing in 

Page 16

Page 8 of 18



 

mind such factors as the importance of the policies which are complied 
with or infringed, and the extent of compliance or breach.  

 
 National Planning Policy Framework 
 
5.11 The NPPF states that the planning system has three overarching 

objectives; economic, social and environmental which are 
interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways. 
Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding 
development towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take 
local circumstances into account, to reflect the character, needs and 
opportunities of each area. 

 
5.12 Paragraph 87 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions 

should recognise and address the specific locational requirements of 
different sectors. This includes making provision for clusters or 
networks of knowledge and data-driven, creative or high technology 
industries; and for storage and distribution operations at a variety of 
scales and in suitably accessible locations. 

 
5.13 Paragraph 115 of the NPPF states that development should only be 

prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 
impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 
5.14 Paragraph 165 of the NPPF states that inappropriate development in 

areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by directing development 
away from areas at highest risk (whether existing or future). 

 
5.15 Paragraph 173 of the NPPF advises that when determining any 

planning application, local planning authorities should ensure that flood 
risk is not increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications should 
be supported by a site-specific flood-risk assessment. 

 
5.16 Chapter 15 of the NPPF relates to conserving and enhancing the 

natural environment, requiring that planning decisions should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by means 
including ensuring they minimise impacts on and provide net gains for 
biodiversity and prevent new and existing development from 
contributing to unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution 
or land instability.  

 
5.17 Paragraph 180 states that planning decisions should contribute to and 

enhance the natural and local environment by means including 
minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity.  

 
5.18 Paragraph 194 of the NPPF states that the focus of planning decisions 

should be on whether proposed development is an acceptable use of 
land, rather than the control of processes or emissions (where these 

Page 17

Page 9 of 18



 

are subject to separate pollution control regimes). Planning decisions 
should assume that these regimes will operate effectively.  

 
The Development Plan 

 
Rugby Borough Local Plan 2011-2031 (adopted June 2019). 

 
5.19 Policy GP2 – Settlement Hierarchy: states that development will be 

allocated and supported in accordance with the following Settlement 
Hierarchy, as defined on the Policies Map: Rugby Town – Main focus 
for all development in the Borough.  

 
5.20 Policy ED2 – Employment Development Within Rugby Urban Area: 

New employment development within use classes B1(b), B1(c), B2 and 
B8 will be permitted within the urban area boundary, including new land 
within an amended urban area boundary following new allocations 
made in this Local Plan. Any such developments will be subject to 
compliance with all other relevant policies in the Local Plan and 
national policy. Applicants will be required to demonstrate that any 
potential impacts on neighbouring land uses, particularly those 
especially sensitive to noise, visual amenity or air quality impacts 
arising from industrial uses are avoided, or where this is not possible, 
mitigated to an acceptable level. 

 
5.21 Policy HS5 – Traffic Generation and Air Quality, Noise and 

Vibration: Requires development proposals to minimise the impact on 
air quality, noise and vibration caused by traffic generation.  

 
5.22 Policy NE1 – Protecting Designated Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

Assets: The Council will protect designated areas and species of 
international, national and local importance for biodiversity and 
geodiversity as set out below. Development will be expected to deliver 
a net gain in biodiversity and be in accordance with the mitigation 
hierarchy below. Planning permission will be refused if significant harm 
resulting from development affecting biodiversity cannot be:  
• Avoided, and where this is not possible; 
• Mitigated, and if it cannot be fully mitigated, as a last resort; 
• Compensated for. 

 
5.23 Policy NE3 – Landscape Protection and Enhancement: Requires 

new development to make a positive contribution to landscape 
character and requires development proposals to demonstrate that 
they: 
• Integrate landscape planning into the design of development at an 

early stage; 
• Consider its landscape context, including the local distinctiveness 

of the different natural and historic landscapes and character, 
including tranquillity; 

Page 18

Page 10 of 18



 

• Relate well to local topography and built form and enhance key 
landscape features, ensuring their long term management and 
maintenance; 

• Identify likely visual impacts on the local landscape and townscape 
and its immediate setting and undertakes appropriate landscaping 
to reduce these impacts; 

• Aim to either conserve, enhance or restore important landscape 
features in accordance with the latest local and national guidance;  

• Address the importance of habitat biodiversity features, including 
aged and veteran trees, woodland and hedges and their 
contribution to landscape character, where possible enhancing and 
expanding these features through means such as buffering and 
reconnecting fragmented areas; and 

• Are sensitive to an area’s capacity to change, acknowledge 
cumulative effects and guard against the potential for coalescence 
between existing settlements. 

 
5.24 Policy SDC1 – Sustainable Design: All development will demonstrate 

high quality, inclusive and sustainable design and new development 
will only be supported where the proposals are of a scale, density and 
design that responds to the character of the areas in which they are 
situated. All developments should aim to add to the overall quality of 
the areas in which they are located. Factors including the massing, 
height, landscape, layout, materials and access should also be a key 
consideration in the determination of planning applications. Proposals 
for new development will ensure that the living conditions of existing 
and future neighbouring occupiers are safeguarded.  

 
5.25 Policy SDC2 – Landscaping: States that the landscape aspects of a 

development proposal will be required to form an integral part of the 
overall design, and requires new development to have a high standard 
of appropriate hard and soft landscaping.  

 
5.26 Policy SDC3 – Protecting and Enhancing the Historic 

Environment: Requires that development affecting the significance of 
a designated or non-designated heritage asset and its setting will be 
expected to preserve or enhance its significance. 

 
5.27 Policy SDC4 – Sustainable Buildings: All non-residential 

development over 1000 sqm should aim to achieve as a minimum 
BREEAM standard ‘very good’ (or any future national equivalent) 
unless it can be demonstrated that it is financially unviable. 

 
5.28 Policy SDC6 – Sustainable Drainage: Sustainable Drainage Systems 

(SuDS) are required in all major developments and all development in 
flood zones 2 and 3. An acceptable means of surface water disposal 
should be provided preferably on-site or, where this is not possible, 
close to the site, which does not increase the risk of flooding or give 
rise to environmental problems and improves on the current situation. 

 

Page 19

Page 11 of 18



 

5.29 Policy SDC7 – Protection of the Water Environment and Water 
Supply: Developers will be expected to ensure that there is adequate 
water supply to serve existing and proposed development by means 
including ensuring development is in accordance with the Water 
Framework Directive Objectives and does not adversely affect the 
waterbodies’ ability to reach good status or potential as set out in the 
River Severn ‘River Basin Management Plan’ (RBMP). Development 
will not be permitted where proposals have a negative impact on water 
quality, either directly through pollution of surface or ground water, or 
directly through the overloading of Wastewater Treatment Works. 

 
5.30 Policy D1 – Transport: requires that all large-scale developments 

which result in significant traffic movements, should be supported by a 
Transport Assessment and where necessary a Travel Plan, to 
demonstrate practical and effective measures be taken to mitigate the 
adverse impacts of traffic. 

 
5.31 Policy D2 – Parking Facilities: Planning permission will only be 

granted for development incorporating adequate and satisfactory 
parking facilities including provision for motorcycles and for people with 
disabilities based on the Rugby Borough Council’s Parking Standards.  

 
 Planning Policy Review 
 
5.32 The proposed construction of a fire house and training facility is 

supported by policies contained in the NPPF and the development 
plan, particularly with regard to settlement hierarchy and employment 
development. The development plan also includes policy constraints 
which seek to ensure a satisfactory form of development in order to 
protect the natural and built environment and the amenity of 
neighbouring occupiers from any adverse impacts resulting from the 
development. Subject to such effects and impacts being appropriately 
mitigated and managed, the proposed development would accord with 
the policies of the NPPF and the development plan. The potential 
issues are discussed below.  

  
 Principle of Development  
 
5.33 The application site consists of previously developed land. A planning 

permission for the construction of a fire rescue training centre at this 
site was granted in June 2023. The principle of the development has 
therefore been established.  

 
5.34 Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 

relates to applications for planning permission for the development of 
land without complying with conditions subject to which a previous 
planning permission was granted. The legislation requires that on such 
an application the local planning authority shall consider only the 
question of the conditions subject to which planning permission should 
be granted. If the local planning authority decides that planning 

Page 20

Page 12 of 18



 

permission should be granted subject to conditions differing from those 
subject to which the previous permission was granted, or that it should 
be granted unconditionally, it shall grant planning permission 
accordingly.  

 
5.35 In the case of this application, the condition in question is condition 2 of 

planning permission RBC/22CC007. This stipulates that the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
plans and details. The impacts of the development as a whole have 
already been assessed during the determination of application 
reference RBC/22CC007 and on balance were considered to be 
acceptable so that planning permission was granted. The impact of the 
amended details (which are the subject of the current application) are 
also considered to be acceptable, and no objections have been 
received from consultees or the public.  

 
 Amenity and Environmental Issues 
 
 Design and Appearance and Impact on Local Amenity 
 
5.36 The application site is within the Urban Edge of Rugby as defined in 

the Rugby Borough Local Plan Urban Policies Map 2019, and adjacent 
to, but not falling within, an Employment Site to which Policy ED1 
applies.  

 
5.37 The application site is an open area which is currently disused but has 

been used for the storage of road chippings and as a Highway depot 
until 2021. It is surrounded by a landscaped area planted with trees. 
The character of the wider area on this western edge of Rugby is 
largely industrial, dissected by the road network and the wide expanse 
of highway at the intersection of the A428 and the A4071 Rugby 
Western Relief Road. The tall structures of the Cemex cement plant 
are located to the north of the application site and are the dominating 
buildings in the area surrounding the site. 

 
5.38 The proposed development, with the erection of the fire house at 12-13 

metres in height and a welfare building at approximately 6.8 metres in 
height would have some impact on the open appearance of the site 
and the character of the area surrounding the application site, 
introducing not insubstantial built structures to the southern side of 
Lawford Road (A428), opposite the Cemex plant.  

 
5.39 The positioning and layout of the proposed buildings and structures, 

with the tallest elements in the centre of the site and the welfare 
building oriented towards the perimeter of the site, would reduce the 
impact of the development on the wider area.  

 
5.40 Views of the site are mainly from the neighbouring road network or 

from the nearby industrial and commercial properties. The residential 
dwellings, particularly the flats some 170 metres to the east, would a 

Page 21

Page 13 of 18



 

have limited view of the taller structures of the site and would not be 
impacted by any overlooking or overshadowing as a result of the 
development.  

 
5.41 The visual appearance of the site would be mitigated by the existing 

vegetation outside the south eastern and northern boundaries, as well 
as additional landscaping along the western boundary. Given the 
character of the surrounding area, which is largely in industrial and 
commercial use, it is considered that this amount of screening would 
be appropriate.  

 
5.42 National planning policy guidance and policies of the development plan 

require that developments will function well, are visually attractive and 
sympathetic to the surrounding built environment. While the fire house 
is of a purely functional design (more of a technical structure than a 
“building” in the closer definition of the word), the adjacent welfare 
building would be of modern design and appearance. It is considered 
that the scale and design of the proposed buildings and structures on 
the site would be acceptable both in the street scene and in the setting 
of the site when viewed in the context of the mainly light industrial 
buildings surrounding the site and against the backdrop of the Rugby 
Cement plant on the north side of Lawford Road.  

 
5.43 Policy SDC1 – Sustainable Design of the Rugby Borough Local Plan 

requires that new development responds to the character of the area in 
terms of the scale, design and density. In addition, the policy requires 
that proposals for new development ensure that the living conditions of 
existing and future neighbouring occupiers are safeguarded. It is 
considered that the development would have some impact on the 
appearance of the area. However, its appearance, when seen in the 
context of the nearby industrial buildings, would not be out of character 
or detrimental to a degree that would warrant a recommendation of 
refusal. In addition, there would be no adverse impact on the amenity 
of the closest residential dwellings. For these reasons the development 
is considered to accord with Policy SDC1 and the NPPF. 

 
 Highway Issues 
 
5.44 The proposed development would be accessed via the existing site 

access on Paynes Lane, south of its junction with A428 Lawford Road. 
An assessment of available road traffic accident data in the vicinity of 
the application site which was submitted with the original application 
(reference RBC/22CC007) noted that the recorded collisions are 
spread out across the wider area and concludes that there is no 
accident blackspot near the site.  

 
5.45 The number of vehicle movements associated with the proposed 

development would not have a perceptible impact on the surrounding 
highway network from the perspective of both highway capacity and 
safety. The Highway Authority has no objection to the proposal. 

Page 22

Page 14 of 18



 

Consequently the proposed development is considered to be 
acceptable in terms of highways and traffic impact, subject to a 
condition restricting the use of the site to Warwickshire Fire and 
Rescue Service (as is attached to the original permission for this 
development).  

 
 Ecology 
 
5.46 There are no Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) or Local Nature 

Reserves (LNR) in close proximity of the application site, the nearest 
being Draycote Meadows SSSI (5.6 km southwest), Cave's Inn Pits 
SSSI (6.2 km northeast) and Newbold Quarry Park LNR (1.3 km to the 
north). There are three non-statutory designated sites within 1 km of 
the site boundary, these being the River Avon and Tributaries Local 
Wildlife Site (LWS), 211 m west of the application site, Parkfield Road 
Quarry LWS, 360m northeast, and Malpass Quarry LWS, 408 m to the 
north. 

 
5.47 The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal submitted in support of the 

original planning application (reference 22/CC007) details the surveys 
undertaken to determine the presence of protected species within the 
site. The impact of the proposed development on the environment has 
been assessed through a desk assessment and a field study. The 
assessment concludes that the potential for significant adverse effects 
of the proposed development of this site on the SSSIs and LNR is 
negligible, owing to the distance from the proposed development, and 
the fact that all sites, including the local wildlife sites, are designated for 
habitats and species unlikely to be found within the application site 
boundary.  

 
5.48 The County Ecologist agreed with the findings of the Preliminary 

Ecological Appraisal submitted with the original planning application 
(reference 22/CC007) and had no objections to the proposal, subject to 
conditions requiring the submission of a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) and the submission of a combined 
ecological and landscaping scheme. Both have been submitted with 
the current application and are considered acceptable.  

 
5.49 The proposed development is largely similar to that approved in June 

2023 and would therefore also be acceptable in environmental terms.  
 

Heritage 
 
5.50 There are no listed buildings within close proximity to the application 

site, the nearest being Grade II dwellings in Bilton Road about 1.15 km 
to the south east. The application site is not within or adjacent to a 
Conservation Area, the nearest being Bilton Road Conservation Area 
1.15 km to the east. Neither the Conservation Area nor the Listed 
buildings are seen in the same context as the application site. The 
County Archaeologist did not comment on the application. The 

Page 23

Page 15 of 18



 

proposed development is not considered to have an adverse impact on 
heritage assets. 

 
 Equality Impact Assessment  
 
5.51 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is an evidence-based approach 

which analyses a proposed activity against its impact on groups with 
different characteristics. This will support achieving inclusive design 
and meeting legal duties under the Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector 
Equality Duty (PSED). It is a planning tool intended to influence the 
proposed activity before a decision is reached, in the same way that a 
Health and Safety risk assessment might do. It helps ensure decision-
making processes are fair and no group is disadvantaged or 
discouraged from participating.  

 
5.52 The Public Sector Equality Duty applies to all nine areas of 

discrimination listed in the Equality Act, known as protected 
characteristics. These are age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership (only applies with regard to eliminating 
unlawful discrimination), pregnancy & maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex, and sexual orientation.  

 
5.53 Warwickshire County Council has published a Guide to Equality Impact 

Assessments (January 2022). This includes guidance to determine 
whether a proposed activity requires an Equality Impact Assessment.  

 
5.54 The three tests to ascertain whether an Equality Impact Assessment is 

required are:  
• To what extent does the proposed activity impact people?  
• Will the proposed activity have a particular impact on those who 

share a protected characteristic?  
• Is the impact positive and/or negative? 

 
  Extent of the impact of the proposed activity on people  
 
5.55 The proposed construction and operation of the fire and rescue training 

centre would not result in any significant impact on people in general. 
The location of the development is a currently vacant former Highways 
depot. The environmental impacts (noise, dust/smoke, traffic, visual 
impact) have been addressed during the determination of the planning 
application and are considered to be acceptable. It is considered that 
these effects are outside of the scope of an Equality Impact 
Assessment. The proposed fire and rescue training centre is intended 
to be used by members of the emergency services only, in the context 
of professional training. The site is not accessible to the public. The 
impact of the proposed development on people in the context of an 
Equality Impact Assessment is therefore considered to be neutral.   

 
 
 

Page 24

Page 16 of 18



 

  Particular impact on those who share a protected characteristic  
 
5.56 As the site is not accessible to the public and its operation would not 

affect the public at large, the proposed development would not have a 
specific impact on those who share a protected characteristic.  

 
  Nature of impact (positive and/or negative)  
 
5.57 The proposed construction and operation of a fire and rescue training 

centre would not result in a positive or negative impact within the scope 
of an Equality Impact Assessment.  

 
5.58 On the basis of the above assessment it is considered that the 

proposal does not require the preparation of an Equality Impact 
Assessment.  

 
 
6. Conclusions 
 
6.1 Warwickshire Fire and Rescue Service has a statutory duty to provide 

training for its staff. Currently, such training is provided by external 
suppliers, however, the use of an in-house facility would lead to cost 
reductions in the medium term. There is therefore an identified case of 
need for a training facility.  

 
6.2 The proposed development would be located in an area characterised 

by light industrial and other employment uses. The nearest residential 
properties are approximately 170 metres away. The hours of use of the 
facility would be controlled by a planning condition. The proposal is 
therefore considered not to have an unacceptable impact on the 
amenities of local residents.  

 
6.3  In response to the original planning application (reference 22/CC007) 

the Highway Authority had no objection to the proposed development 
subject to a condition restricting the use of the site to that proposed by 
the application. Should permission for the amended scheme be 
granted, it would also be subject to this condition. The proposed car 
parking provision would be appropriate for the nature of the 
development. 

 
6.4 The proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact on local 

ecology or protected species. The County Ecologist had no objection to 
the original scheme, subject to the submission of Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and the submission of a 
combined ecological and landscaping scheme, which would assist in 
achieving a Biodiversity net gain in accordance with the requirements 
of the NPPF. These have been submitted and any planning permission 
would include conditions requiring the CEMP to be implemented during 
construction of the development and the landscaping scheme to be 
implemented.  

Page 25

Page 17 of 18



 

 
6.5 No objections to the proposed development have been received from 

statutory consultees or from the public. The development as originally 
proposed under planning application reference RBC/22CC007 is 
considered to be in accordance with the requirements of the NPPF and 
local plan policies. The development is acceptable in principle. The 
amendments to the site layout which are now being proposed are also 
considered to be acceptable and are recommended for approval 
subject to the planning conditions listed in Appendix B, which largely 
replicate those attached to the original consent.    

 
  
7. Supporting Documents 
 
7.1 Submitted Planning Application – Planning reference RBC/23CC007 
 
7.2 Appendix A – Map of site and location. 
 
7.3 Appendix B – Planning Conditions. 
 
7.4 Appendix C – Drawings showing the previously approved site layout 

and the previously approved elevations of the welfare building.  
 
7.5 Appendix D – Drawings showing the proposed site layout and the 

proposed elevations of the welfare building. 
 
 
 
 Name Contact Information 
Report Author Georg Urban georgurban@warwickshire.gov.uk 

01926 412822 
Director of 
Environment, 
Planning and 
Transport 

Scott Tompkins scotttompkins@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Executive Director for 
Communities 

Mark Ryder markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder for 
Transport and 
Planning 

Councillor Jan 
Matecki 

cllrmatecki@warwickshire.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26

Page 18 of 18



Appendix A

P
age 27

P
age 1 of 1

P
age 1 of 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix B 
 
 
Application under Section 73 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act (as amended) seeking permission for the 

variation of condition 2 of planning permission 
RBC/22CC007 for a new fire rescue training centre 

including a 'hot smoke house' Minerva fire simulation 
training facility, a welfare building, on-site parking, 

road way, fencing and planting,  
Warwickshire County Council owned land, former 
Land & Chippings site, Paynes Lane, Rugby, CV21 

2UH. 
 

RBC/23CC007 
 

 
Planning Conditions 
 
1. The development hereby approved shall be begun no later than three 

years from the date of this permission.  
 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 
 

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance 
with the application form and drawings numbered: 

• 5461-010 Rev C3 - Proposed Site Plan 
• 11940-WBL-02-ZZ-M3-Y-Q-2001-S3 Rev P05 - Welfare Building 

Proposed Elevations 
• 11940-WBL-02-GF-DR-Y-Q-1001-S3 Rev P05 - Welfare 

Building Proposed GA Ground Floor 
• 11940-WBL-02-FF-DR-Y-Q-1002-S3 Rev P04 - Welfare Building 

Proposed GA First Floor 
• 5461-DE007 Rev C2 - Equipment Store Plan, Section and 

Elevations 
• 5461-DE002 Rev C1 - Cycle Shelter 
• PL-04 Proposed Plan, Elevations and 3D Images, Minerva Unit 

and Filtration Unit (submitted with planning application 
RBC/22CC007)  

• PL-06 Proposed Plan, Elevations and 3D Images, Minerva Unit 
and Filtration Unit (submitted with planning application 
RBC/22CC007) 

• 24.1842.001 Landscape Proposals 
 

Page 29

Page 1 of 4Page 1 of 4



 

and any samples or details approved in accordance with the conditions 
attached to this permission, except to the extent that any modification 
is required or allowed by or pursuant to these conditions.  
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in 
accordance with Policy SDC1 – Sustainable Design of the Rugby 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2031. 

 
Construction Environmental Management Plan 
 

3. The development hereby permitted, including site clearance and any 
excavation works, shall not be carried out other than in accordance 
with the submitted Construction and Environmental Management Plan.  
 
Reason: To ensure that any protected species and habitats to be 
retained are not harmed by the development, in accordance with Policy 
NE3 – Landscape Protection and Enhancement of the Rugby Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2031, the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) 2021, and ODPM Circular 06/2005. 

 
Landscape Proposals 

 
4. The landscape proposals detailed on drawing no. 24.1842.001 shall be 

implemented during the first available planting season following the 
commencement of the development. Any tree that is seriously 
damaged or becomes seriously diseased or dies or is removed during 
the first 5 years after planting shall be replaced with a similar specimen 
of similar size within the next available planting season. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the appearance and environmental quality of 
the development hereby permitted is acceptable and that the 
development does not result in adverse landscape or visual impact, in 
accordance with Policy SDC2 – Landscaping of the Rugby Borough 
Local Plan 2011-2031. 

 
Hours of construction  
 

5. No work relating to the construction of the development hereby 
permitted (including works of preparation prior to operations, the 
delivery of construction materials, skips or machinery, or the removal of 
waste materials from site) shall take place outside the hours of 0800 to 
1800 Monday to Friday inclusive, 0800 to 1400 hours on Saturdays or 
at any time on Sundays or Public or Bank Holidays.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties 
and to ensure the developments accords with Policy ED2 – 
Employment Development of the Rugby Borough Local Plan 2011-
2031. 
 
 

Page 30

Page 2 of 4



 

Hours of operation  
 

6. The use of the development hereby permitted shall not take place 
outside the hours of 0800 to 2200 Monday to Friday inclusive, 0800 to 
1400 hours on Saturdays or at any time on Sundays or Public or Bank 
Holidays.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties 
and to ensure the developments accords with Policy ED2 – 
Employment Development within Rugby Urban Area of the Rugby 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2031.  
 
Use of the site 
 

7. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any 
statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification), the application site shall be used for no other purpose 
than as a fire rescue training centre.  
 
Reason: As any alternate uses could significantly increase the number 
of vehicular movements to the site, and to comply with Policies ED2 – 
Employment Development within Rugby Urban Area, HS5 – Traffic 
Generation and Air Quality, Noise and Vibration, and SDC1 – 
Sustainable Design of the Rugby Borough Local Plan 2011-2031. 
 

 
Development Plan Policies Relevant to the Decision. 
 
Rugby Borough Local Plan 2011-2031 (adopted June 2019)  
 
Policy GP2 – Settlement Hierarchy 
Policy ED2 – Employment Development Within Rugby Urban Area 
Policy HS5 – Traffic Generation and Air Quality, Noise and Vibration 
Policy NE1 – Protecting Designated Biodiversity and Geodiversity Assets 
Policy NE3 – Landscape Protection and Enhancement 
Policy SDC1 – Sustainable Design 
Policy SDC2 – Landscaping  
Policy SDC3 – Protecting and Enhancing the Historic Environment 
Policy SDC4 – Sustainable Buildings 
Policy SDC6 – Sustainable Drainage 
Policy SDC7 – Protection of the Water Environment and Water Supply 
Policy D1 – Transport 
Policy D2 – Parking Facilities 
 
Compliance with the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) Order 2015 
 
In considering this application the County Council has complied with 
paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December 2023). 

Page 31

Page 3 of 4



 

Notes 
 

1. Environmental Health Officer’s Comments 
 
The applicant’s attention is drawn to the following comment by the Rugby 
Borough Council Environmental Health Officer:  
As the development is within the Rugby Smoke Control area it should be 
ensured that if installed, any chimney-based exhaust ventilators from the hot 
smoke rooms are adequately controlled to prevent smoke emissions. The 
emission of dark smoke would be an offence under the Clean Air Act 1993 
part 1.  
 
 
 
 

Page 32

Page 4 of 4



27
50

22
00

56
5060

50

22
00

PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION scale 1:50

56
50 60

50

15
0

50
0

15
0

W.G.05W.G.04W.G.01

W.F.05W.F.04W.F.03W.F.02W.F.01

EX.D.05EX.D.03EX.D.02

2

3

2

1

5

6

EX.D.04

W.G.03W.G.02

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION scale 1:50

W.G.07W.G.08W.G.09

2

3

1

4

6
W.G.08 W.G.09

W.G.06

W.G.10

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATIONscale 1:50 scale 1:50

2

3

2

1

2

3

2

1

5

EX.D.06

W.G.06
6

EX.D.01

W.G.07

1

2

3

5

4

6

ELAVATION FINISHES SCHEDULE

- COMPOSITE GLADDING (MID GREY) TO GROUND
LEVEL

- FASCIAS & VERGE CAPPINGS - POWDER COATED
ANTHRACITE GREY. GUTTERS & DOWNPIPES -
ANTHRACITE GREY POWDER COATED

- CLADDING PANELS WHITE (SOLID)

- METAL COMPOSITE INSULATED STANDING SEAM ROOF
IN A MERLIN GREY

- ANTHRACITE POWDER COATED ALUMINIUM DOORS.

- ANTHRACITE GREY POWDER COATED ALUMINIUM
DOUBLE GLAZED WINDOWS

A TBW 10/02/23For Discussion

0 2.5m 1:502m1.5m1m0.5m 3m

FOR DISCUSSION

Do not scale from this drawing, work to given dimensions.
All dimensions to be checked on site. Any discrepancies

with this drawing to be reported and clarified prior to
commencing work on site, if in doubt - Ask.

Corporate Architecture Ltd accept no responsibility for
works not undertaken fully in accordance with this drawing

and relevant specifications.
Copyright © Corporate Architecture Limited

CORPORATE ARCHITECTURE LIMITED
CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

Venari House, 1 Trimbush Way,
Market Harborough,

Leicestershire, LE16 7XY
Tel: 01858 467476

office@corporatearchitecture.co.uk
www.corporatearchitecture.co.uk

HEAD OFFICE

Drawing Status:

Revision Number:

Drawn by: Checked: Date: Paper Size:

Drawing Number:

Client:

Project:
Rev: Description: By: Date:

Revision Log:

Drawing Title:

Scale:

North point:

Notes:

A1

Warwickshire County Council,
Minerva Fire House Training Facility,
Hot Smoke House,
Paynes Lane,
Rugby

Warwickshire County Council,

RLC Jan '23

Proposed Welfare Building Elevations

5461/23/WCC-HSH/0103 B

WCC Planning
Drawings

Recreated For
Discussion

B AH 24/05/23For Discussion

Appendix C - Previously approved elevations of Welfare Building

P
age 33

P
age 1 of 1

P
age 1 of 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



10
.5

 x
 2

.9
m

Fi
re

 A
pp

lia
nc

e

10
.5

 x
 2

.9
m

Fi
re

 A
pp

lia
nc

e

MINERVA

       WELFARE
           UNIT

- CHANGING
- TOILETS
- WASHROOMS
- MEETING
- OFFICE

CANOPY
WATER EQUIPT

STORE

SKIP

WOOD STORE

TELEHANDLERSPACE

SLIDING SOLID GATES

HT 3.0m

SECURITY FENCING 5.0m HIGH

SE
C

U
R

IT
Y 

FE
N

C
IN

G
 2

.5
m

 H
IG

H

SECURITY FENCING 2.5m HIGH

SOLID
 S

ECURIT
Y F

ENCIN
G 5.

0m
 H

IG
H

 S
EC

U
R

IT
Y 

FE
N

C
IN

G
 2

.5
m

 H
IG

H

W
AT

ER
 T

AN
K 

IF
 R

EQ
UI

RE
D

SI
ZE

 A
ND

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N 

TO
 B

E 
CO

NF
IR

M
ED

HARDSTANDING

6m
 W

ID
E 

AC
CE

SS
 R

O
AD

3.
75

m
 W

ID
E 

AC
CE

SS
 R

O
AD

HOLDING AREA

HARDSTANDING

PE
RI

M
ET

ER
 D

RA
IN

AG
E

PE
RI

M
ET

ER
 D

RA
IN

AG
E

BAY 1

BAY 14

BAY 13

BAY 12

BAY 11

BAY 10

BAY 9

BAY 8

BAY 7

BAY 6

BAY 5

BAY 4

BAY 3

BAY 2

DIS

REFUSE STORE

IN

O
U

T

MOTOR CYCLE
BAY

GRASS

HA
RD

ST
AN

DI
NG

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

                     2.5m SECURITY FENCING

SOFT LANDSCAPING

HARD STANDING

FIRE APPLIANCE
SET DOWN AREA

MINERVA UNIT & WELFARE
ASSOCIATED UNITS

EXISTING LANDSCAPING

NEW TREES / SHRUBS
& LANDSCAPING

2.5m SECURITY GATE (SLIDING)

PARKING BAYS (X14)
BAY 1 - DISABLED BAY

BAY 13-14 EV CHARGING

PAYNES LANE 
MINERVA UNIT

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT

PLANNING

LJON MAR 23

1:200 @ A1

PL/D1 A

Drawn by

Initials Date

Drawing No.

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT

Notes

Revision

Revisions Date

Checked by

Scale

Drawing Status

Appendix C - Previously approved site layout

P
age 35

P
age 1 of 1

P
age 1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
sound connected

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
sound connected

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
above ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
above ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
osa

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
poor trace

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
poor trace

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
1.55d

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
1.60d

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
1.10d

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
1.20d

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
300%%c sws

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
2.71d

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
il 87.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
osa

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
utr

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
100%%Csws

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
100%%Csws

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
pe water

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
utt

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
cut off

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
il 85.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
above ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
sv's

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
sv's

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
ic

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
electrics

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
private property

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
cl 86.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
cl 86.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
wire fence (ht 2.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
electrics

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
brick building

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
parapet level 92.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
eaves level 89.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
ridge level 92.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
eaves level 88.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
ridge level 88.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
eaves level 95.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
cl 89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
cl 88.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
cl 87.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
cl 87.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
steel railings (ht 1.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
cl 86.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
cl 89.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
cl 89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
steel railings (ht 1.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
steel railings (ht 1.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
cl 89.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
cl 89.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
up

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
steel fence (ht 2.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
steel fence (ht 1.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
steel railings (ht 1.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
steel railings (ht 1.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
steel railings (ht 1.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
steel fence (ht 2.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
brick retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
tp

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
P A Y N E S  L A N E

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
area of saplings

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
(average ht 2.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
area of saplings

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
(average ht 2.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
area of saplings

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
(average ht 3.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
L A W F O R D  R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
A 4 0 7 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
re

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
SHIRE HALL,WARWICK,CV34 4RP

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
RESOURCES GROUP

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
PHYSICAL ASSETS

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Warwickshire

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
County Council 

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
A. OMISSION OF 5M HT SOLID FENCING   MARCH 23OMISSION OF 5M HT SOLID FENCING   MARCH 23MARCH 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Module FFL
0

Proposed First Floor Plan
3375

Top of Roof
6860

Module FFL
0

Proposed First Floor Plan
3375

Top of Roof
6860

Module FFL
0

Proposed First Floor Plan
3375

Top of Roof
6860

Underside of FF Roof Beam
6112

Module FFL
0

Proposed First Floor Plan
3375

Top of Roof
6860

Underside of FF Roof Beam
6112

Rapidplan System
Level Access Building
Box transport height :
GF - 3375 TBC  
FF - Max Box Height
 

External wall panels: Outer facing Flat plastisol coated steel sheet on 6mm MDF back board. Inner facing- Tape & filled 
plasterboard. Core - Solid sheet EHD insulation set into a timber frame. Colour in White. Ground floor modules to have 
external cladding - Cedral Click Cladding Board - C15 Steel Grey – Smooth Finish. 
Roof Detail: Decking - Profile steel composite insulated sheeting. Outer face - Kingspan Colour coated roof sheet - Merlin 
Grey (Non Standard) Design load - 0.60 KN/m2. Slope - Mono 1.5 Pitch. 
Gutters and down pipes  - uPVC. 68mm Square section Colour Black. 
Fascias - Colourcoated steel profile. Colour Anthracite. Skirt: Solway in black 
Windows: PPC aluminium frame double glazed windows in Anthracite. 
External doors: PPC aluminium frame double glazed doors. Steel louvred and non louvred single doors, Access doors 
including vision panels. All colour in Anthracite  
Canopy - Fabricated aluminium lean-to mono pitch canopy with Polyester powder coated pressed aluminium roof with 
aluminium gutter and downpipe.

Module FFL
0

Suspended Ceiling
2360

Level 0
-293

0 9.6

Underside of GF Roof Beam
2700

Proposed First Floor Plan
3375

First Floor Sus.Ceiling
5735

Top of Roof
6860

Underside of FF Roof Beam
6112

Topside of Beam
3082

A B

68
60

38
9

23
60

33
75

63
4

9977

UNCONTROLLED COPY

WB 527

THESE DRAWINGS ARE WERNICK COPYRIGHT 
AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED

NOTES:

FIGURED DIMENSIONS ARE TO BE TAKEN IN 
PREFERENCE TO SCALED MEASUREMENTS

SUITABILITY:

REVISIONS:

ALL WORK IN PROGRESS DRAWINGS:
S0 -  Initial WIP status. All live drawings and internal PDF & print copies 
for checking.

PRE-CONTRACT ISSUES:
S1 - External issues for coordination to other design teams.
S3 - External issue for review and approval to the Client.
D1 - Internal & External issues for pricing purposes. Preliminary stamp 
required.

D3 - CP Package issue.
D4 - Manufacturing drawings issue.
IN-CONTRACT ISSUES:
A1 - Approved & Accepted Drawings
B1 - Revisions & variations issued for approval.

FOR SUITABILITY S, D & B (PRE-CONTRACT):
P01.1, P01.2 etc  - WIP for internal PDF & print copies for checking.

Consecutive decimals for all intermediate WIP issues.
P01 - when revision is ready for issue remove the decimals. 

FIRST ISSUE IS ALWAYS P01.
P02, P03 etc  - consecutive numbers for further revisions
FOR SUITABILITY A (CONTRACT OR CONSTRUCTION ISSUE):
C01 - only for approved drawings. 

CLIENT:

DRAWING NO:

PROJECT:

DRAWING TITLE:

DRAWN: CHECKED: DATE:

REVISION:INTERNAL NO:

SCALE:

SUITABILITY:

PROJECT ORIGINATOR SCHEME LEVEL TYPE OF INF ROLE STAGE NUMBER

Kenfig Industrial Estate, Port Talbot, SA13 2 PE
Tel: 01656 747 340  Website: wernick.co.uk

As indicated@ A1

Corporate Architecture Ltd

Fire Training Facility

Proposed Elevations

2001

RR KN 29th Jan 24

P0511940 S3

Rugby CV21 2UH

QYM3ZZ02WBL11940

 1 : 50
1
Front Elevation

 1 : 50
2
Rear Elevation

 1 : 50
3
Side Elevation 01

 1 : 50
4
Side Elevation 02

NOTE: Elevations showing PVs. Design details TBC at a later stage. NOTE: Canopy indicative only.
Design details TBC at a later stage. 

Number Revision Description Date Issued Checked
P01 Initial Scheme 29thJan'24
P02 Post Review 5thFeb'24
P03 External Elevation amendments following PDM 9-Feb-24 15-Feb-24 RG
P04 Canopy added to elevation drawing 19-Feb-24 RG
P05 Wall panel demarkation lines amended on elevations, wall panel colours amended back to white. More in depth specification notes added for the external walls and canopy. 20-Feb-24 RG

1 : 75
5
Longitudinal section - 9.6 unit

Appendix D - Proposed elevations of Welfare Building

P
age 37

P
age 1 of 1

P
age 1 of 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



MATERIAL LEGEND:

WELFARE UNIT - PERMEABLE BLOCK
PAVED SURFACE

CAR PARKING BAYS - PERMEABLE
BLOCK PAVED SURFACE

ROAD - CONCRETE

HARD STANDING - CONCRETE

STORAGE SHED - HAY
JACKSONS GARDEN SUPPLIES - LOTUS APEX
ANTHRACITE GREY, 3070mm(W) x 3070mm(D) x
2020(H)mm REFER TO DETAIL DE001

BIKE SHELTER
BROXAP - ECCLESTON ECONOMY CYCLE SHELTER,
2030mm(W) x 2143mm(D) x 2100mm(H), 5 cycle
capacity. REFER TO DETAIL DE002

FIRE HYDRANTS

HIGHWAY STANDARD
THERMOPLASTIC WHITE LINING &
ROAD MARKINGS

GRP CABINET / DISTRIBUTION BOARD
APPROX. SIZE 2500mm(W) x 1500mm(D)

SUBSTATION
ON A CONCRETE BASE, APPROX. SIZED
3300mm(w) x 2400mm(D)

HIGHWAY STANDARD
THERMOPLASTIC WHITE ARROWS
INDICATING DIRECTION OF TRAVEL

ELECTRIC CAR CHARGING POINTS

LEGEND:

DK DROP KERB

NEW ACCESS GATE
JACKSONS FENCING - DOUBLE LEAF MANUAL
WELDED MESH GATE, 2400mm(H) x 7000mm
(Opening Between Posts). REFER TO DETAIL DE006

NEW SECURITY FENCE
JACKSONS FENCING - EUROGAURD REGULAR
WELDED MESH FENCING SYSTEM, 2410mm(H).
REFER TO DETAIL DE005

REFUSE STORE
REFER TO DETAIL DE003

B

WASHING
MACHINE

HELMET
WASHING

DIRTY KIT
COLLECTIONCHARGING

RWP RWP EQUIPMENT STORE
GALVANISHED STEEL STORE WITH COMPOSITE CLADDING, APPROX.
10280mm(W) x 2880mm(D) x 2750mm(H)
REFER TO DETAIL DE004

(2000)
DIMENSIONS
ALL DIMENSION IN BRACKETS I.E. TO MOUNDS ARE APPROXIMATE AND WILL
DEPEND ON THE AMOUNT OF ARISING MATERIAL FROM EXCAVATIONS.

MOUNDING
MOUNDING TO CONSIST OF EXCAVATED SOIL MATERIAL FROM SITE
EXCAVATIONS FOR DRAINAGE, FOUNDATIONS, SERVICES, ETC (NOT SITE
STRIP OR CONTAMINATED MATERIAL). THE “MOUNDS” WILL BE LOW RISES
OF APPROXIMATELY 15º WITH THE TOPS OF THE SLOPE/MOUND TO BE
GENTLY ROUNDED TO PROMOTE DRAINAGE. THE ESTIMATED LARGEST
MOUND HEIGHT SHOULD BE NO GREATER THAN 1500MM HIGH. PERIMETER
SOILED AREAS SHALL BE PREPARE TO RECEIVING LANDSCAPE TREATMENT
PLANTING AND GRASS SEEDING.

SKIP

WOOD STORE

TELEHANDLER
SPACE

PE
RI

M
ET

ER
 D

RA
IN

AG
E

PE
RI

M
ET

ER
 D

RA
IN

AG
E

6000

4565

4000

80
00

NEW ACCESS
GATE

KERB PERIMETER
TO CONCRETE

SURFACES

CONCRETE
SURFACE

CONCRETE
SURFACE

CONCRETE
SURFACE

CONCRETE
SURFACE

CONCRETE
SURFACE

CONCRETE
SURFACE

CONCRETE
SURFACE

CONCRETE
SURFACE

 MOUND
EXCAVATED

MATERIAL ON SITE

WHITE LINING

INDICATIVE
ENTRANCE

CONFIGURATION A4071
PAYNES LANE

PA
YN

ES
 L

A
N

E

MOUND
EXCAVATED

MATERIAL ON SITE

 MOUND
EXCAVATED

MATERIAL ON SITE

NEW SIGNAGE

PERMEABLE BLOCK
PAVED SURFACE

MOUNDING
EXCAVATED

MATERIAL ON SITE

4800

24
00

DK
SUB STATION

GRP DISTRIBUTION
BOX

B

ELECTRIC CHARGING
BAYS

DK

DK

DK

BIN
STORE

DK

DK

MOUND
EXCAVATED

MATERIAL ON SITE

MOUND
EXCAVATED

MATERIAL ON SITE

ED.2

ED.3

ED.4

2055

2055

2750

2750

ED.1

25
50

WASHING
MACHINE

HELMET
WASHING

DIRTY KITCOLLECTION

CHARGING

RWP

RWP

SLAB LAID TO FALLTOWARDS DRAINS

Circular block ref ""
Circular block ref ""
Circular block ref ""

APPROX. LOCATION
OF OFFICE AND

WELFARE UNIT, SIZE
AND SITING TO BE

DETERMINED
FOLLOWING

APPOINTMENT OF
BUILDING

MANUFACTURER

PERMEABLE BLOCK
PAVED SURFACE

PERMEABLE BLOCK
PAVED SURFACE

6425

MOUNDING

MOUNDING TO CONSIST OF EXCAVATED SOIL MATERIAL
FROM SITE EXCAVATIONS FOR DRAINAGE, SERVICES, ETC
(NOT SITE STRIP OR CONTAMINATED MATERIAL). THE
“MOUNDS” WILL BE LOW RISES OF APPROXIMATELY 15º WITH
THE TOPS OF THE SLOPE/MOUND TO BE GENTLY ROUNDED
TO PROMOTE DRAINAGE. THE ESTIMATED LARGEST MOUND
HEIGHT SHOULD BE NO GREATER THAN 1500MM HIGH.
PERIMETER SOILED AREAS SHALL BE PREPARE TO
RECEIVING LANDSCAPE TREATMENT PLANTING AND GRASS
SEEDING.

PERIMETER FENCING - REFER TO DE005

PERIMETER FENCING - REFER TO DE006

MOUNDING

MOUNDING TO CONSIST OF EXCAVATED SOIL MATERIAL
FROM SITE EXCAVATIONS FOR DRAINAGE, SERVICES, ETC
(NOT SITE STRIP OR CONTAMINATED MATERIAL). THE
“MOUNDS” WILL BE LOW RISES OF APPROXIMATELY 15º WITH
THE TOPS OF THE SLOPE/MOUND TO BE GENTLY ROUNDED
TO PROMOTE DRAINAGE. THE ESTIMATED LARGEST MOUND
HEIGHT SHOULD BE NO GREATER THAN 1500MM HIGH.
PERIMETER SOILED AREAS SHALL BE PREPARE TO
RECEIVING LANDSCAPE TREATMENT PLANTING AND GRASS
SEEDING.

PERIMETER FENCING - REFER TO DE005

PERIMETER FENCING - REFER TO DE005

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

(14340)

(7538)

(9498)

(4
65

13
)

(9430)

(1
15

89
)

(17
04

9)

(16740)

(14
22

8)

(10273)

(7
38

9)

(2
16

27
)

(9527)

NORTH

Proposed Site Plan 1:125

1:1250 1.25m 2.5m 3.75m 5m 6.25m 7.5m

Do not scale from this drawing, work to given dimensions.
All dimensions to be checked on site. Any discrepancies

with this drawing to be reported and clarified prior to
commencing work on site, if in doubt - Ask.

Corporate Architecture Ltd accept no responsibility for
works not undertaken fully in accordance with this drawing

and relevant specifications.
Copyright © Corporate Architecture Limited

CONSTRUCTION ISSUE

CORPORATE ARCHITECTURE LIMITED
CHARTERED ARCHITECTS

Venari House, 1 Trimbush Way,
Market Harborough,

Leicestershire, LE16 7XY
Tel: 01858 467476

office@corporatearchitecture.co.uk
www.corporatearchitecture.co.uk

HEAD OFFICE

Drawing Status:

Revision Number:

Drawn by: Checked: Date: Paper Size:

Drawing Number:

Client:

Project:
Rev: Description: By: Date:

Revision Log:

Drawing Title:

North point:

Notes:

Scale:

A0

WCC Minerva,
Gleeds Hot Smoke Unit,
Land of Paynes Lane,
Rugby,
CV21 2UH

TBW Feb' 23

Proposed Site Plan

5461/WCC/22/010 C3

C1 TBW Feb' 24Construction Issue
C2 TBW 14/02/24Minerva Unit Updated

C3 rlc 20/02/24Mound dimensions and mound notes
added, legend updated, contours deleted

Appendix D - Proposed Site Plan

P
age 39

P
age 1 of 1

P
age 1 of 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
88.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
365

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
88.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
370

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
87.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
386

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
88.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
431

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
88.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
433

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
88.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
435

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
sound connected

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
sound connected

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
above ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
above ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
osa

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
poor trace

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
poor trace

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
1.55d

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
1.60d

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
1.10d

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
1.20d

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
300%%c sws

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
eot

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
2.71d

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
il 87.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
osa

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
utr

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
100%%Csws

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
100%%Csws

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
pe water

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
utt

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
cut off

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
il 85.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
above ground

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
ic

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
bt

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
tactile paving

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
electrics

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
private property

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
cl 86.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
cl 86.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
wire fence (ht 2.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
electrics

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
brick building

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
parapet level 92.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
eaves level 89.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
ridge level 92.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
gully

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
lp

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
eaves level 88.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
ridge level 88.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
stone building

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
89.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
89.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
89.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
89.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
89.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
89.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
89.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
89.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
89.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
89.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
89.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
89.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
89.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
89.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
89.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
89.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
88.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
89.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
89.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
89.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
89.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
88.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
89.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
88.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
88.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
89.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
88.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
89.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
89.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
89.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
89.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
88.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
88.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
89.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
88.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
89.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
89.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
89.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
89.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
88.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
88.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
88.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
88.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
195

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
88.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
88.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
88.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
88.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
88.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
88.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
206

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
88.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
88.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
88.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
88.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
87.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
87.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
87.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
87.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
87.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
224

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
87.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
86.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
230

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
86.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
231

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
86.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
234

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
86.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
235

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
86.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
236

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
86.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
238

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
87.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
87.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
86.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
243

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
87.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
244

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
87.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
245

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
87.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
247

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
87.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
248

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
87.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
249

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
86.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
86.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
86.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
85.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
261

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
85.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
262

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
85.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
263

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
85.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
85.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
267

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
86.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
270

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
86.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
271

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
86.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
272

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
86.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
273

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
86.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
274

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
86.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
275

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
86.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
276

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
86.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
277

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
87.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
278

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
87.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
282

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
87.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
283

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
86.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
285

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
86.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
290

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
86.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
292

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
86.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
293

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
86.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
294

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
86.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
295

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
88.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
314

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
88.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
315

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
88.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
316

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
88.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
319

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
88.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
320

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
88.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
322

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
88.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
323

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
88.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
327

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
89.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
329

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
88.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
330

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
92.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
353

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
93.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
354

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
88.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
355

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
87.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
361

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
90.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
362

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
88.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
363

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
88.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
372

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
87.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
377

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
87.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
385

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
87.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
390

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
87.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
392

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
88.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
405

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
88.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
408

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
87.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
419

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
87.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
424

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
88.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
427

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
88.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
429

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
87.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
436

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
87.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
438

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
87.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
440

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
87.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
443

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
89.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
446

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
89.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
560

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
89.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
561

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
89.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
576

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
89.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
cl 89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
cl 87.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
bollard

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
cl 86.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
cl 89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
sp

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
sign

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
cl 89.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
sv

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
mh

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
cl 89.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
elecs

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
up

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
steel fence (ht 2.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
steel fence (ht 1.80)

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
steel railings (ht 1.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
steel railings (ht 1.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
traffic

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
lights

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
steel fence (ht 2.00)

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
brick retaining wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
tp

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
P A Y N E S  L A N E

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
tarmac

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
o/l

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
area of saplings

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
(average ht 2.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
area of saplings

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
(average ht 2.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
area of saplings

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
(average ht 3.50)

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
A 4 0 7 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
re

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
89.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
89.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
89.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
89.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
89.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
89.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
89.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
89.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
89.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
89.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
89.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
89.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
89.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
47

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
89.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
89.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
49

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
52

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
89.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
88.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
74

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
89.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
76

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
89.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
78

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
89.01

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
79

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
89.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
88

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
89.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
88.99

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
97

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
89.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
99

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
88.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
88.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
101

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
89.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
102

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
88.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
104

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
89.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
111

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
89.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
114

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
89.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
116

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
89.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
122

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
88.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
124

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
88.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
127

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
89.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
129

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
88.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
130

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
89.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
161

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
89.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
165

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
89.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
167

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
89.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
169

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
88.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
192

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
88.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
193

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
88.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
194

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
88.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
195

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
88.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
199

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
88.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
88.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
201

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
88.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
202

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
88.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
204

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
88.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
206

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
88.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
207

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
88.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
208

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
88.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
210

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
88.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
211

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
87.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
213

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
87.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
214

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
87.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
216

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
87.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
218

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
87.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
224

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
87.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
229

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
86.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
230

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
86.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
231

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
86.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
234

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
86.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
235

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
86.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
236

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
86.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
238

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
87.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
240

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
87.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
241

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
86.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
243

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
87.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
244

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
87.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
245

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
87.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
247

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
87.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
248

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
87.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
249

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
86.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
253

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
86.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
255

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
86.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
260

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
85.96

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
261

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
85.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
262

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
85.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
263

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
85.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
264

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
85.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
267

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
86.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
270

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
86.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
271

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
86.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
272

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
86.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
273

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
86.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
274

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
86.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
275

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
86.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
276

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
86.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
277

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
87.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
282

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
87.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
283

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
86.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
285

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
86.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
290

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
86.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
292

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
86.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
293

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
86.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
294

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
86.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
295

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
88.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
314

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
88.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
315

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
88.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
316

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
88.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
319

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
88.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
320

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
88.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
322

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
88.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
323

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
88.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
327

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
89.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
329

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
88.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
330

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
88.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
332

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
88.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
333

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
88.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
335

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
88.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
336

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
88.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
337

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
88.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
339

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
88.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
341

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
87.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
350

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
87.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
351

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
91.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
352

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
92.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
353

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
93.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
354

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
88.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
355

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
88.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
357

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
87.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
361

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
90.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
362

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
88.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
363

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
88.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
365

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
88.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
368

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
88.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
370

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
88.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
372

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
88.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
373

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
88.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
374

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
88.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
375

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
87.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
377

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
87.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
380

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
87.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
385

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
87.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
390

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
87.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
392

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
88.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
396

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
88.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
397

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
88.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
405

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
88.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
408

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
87.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
415

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
87.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
419

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
87.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
420

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
87.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
424

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
87.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
425

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
87.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
426

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
88.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
427

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
88.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
429

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
88.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
431

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
88.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
433

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
88.05

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
435

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
87.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
436

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
87.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
438

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
87.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
440

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
87.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
443

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
89.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
446

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
89.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
560

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
89.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
561

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
89.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
576

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
89.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
ST08

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
ST07

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
ST06

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
ST05

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
ST04

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
ST02

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
TO ISO BLOCK CORNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
TRUCK ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
TO THIS FACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
HOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
TO ISO BLOCK CORNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
480 AMP SUPPLY WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
MCCB BREAKER IN

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
ENCLOSURE (BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
2 NO. 150mm DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
DUCTS TO HAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
610mm MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
BEND RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
MSF

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
100mm DIA. SERVICE DUCT

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
2 No. 100mm DIA. SERVICE DUCTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
TERMINATION AT FRONT OF FIRE HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
AUXILLARY 63 AMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
3 PHASE + N + PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
(BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
FAN DUCT

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
MSF

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
1-1/2" NPD MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
WATER SUPPLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
c/w VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
(BY OTHERS)



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 41

Page 1 of 4 Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1(3) Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	2 Delegated Decisions
	3 Application under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act (as amended) seeking permission for the variation of condition 2 of planning permission RBC/22CC007 for a new fire rescue training centre including a 'hot smoke house' Minerva fire simulation training facility, a welfare building, on-site parking, road way, fencing and planting, Warwickshire County Council owned land, former Land & Chippings site, Paynes Lane, Rugby, CV21 2UH
	Appendix A - Site Location v2
	Appendix B
	Appendix C - Previously approved elevations of Welfare Building v2
	Sheets and Views
	0103 Elevations


	Appendix C - Previously approved site layout v2
	Sheets and Views
	PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT


	Appendix D - Proposed elevations of Welfare Building v2
	Appendix D - Proposed Site Plan v2
	Sheets and Views
	5461-010C3, 011C3 - Proposed Site Layout-010 C3- Proposed Site Plan 1



	5 Proposed Settlement Following the Decision of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman



